TRADEMARK ASSIGNMENT

Electronic Version v1.1 Stylesheet Version v1.1

SUBMISSION TYPE:	NEW ASSIGNMENT
NATURE OF CONVEYANCE:	ASSIGNS THE ENTIRE INTEREST AND THE GOODWILL

CONVEYING PARTY DATA

Name	Formerly	Execution Date	Entity Type
MedQuest Products, Inc.		01/31/2005	CORPORATION:

RECEIVING PARTY DATA

Name:	World Heart Corporation
Street Address:	7799 Pardee Lane
City:	Oakland
State/Country:	CALIFORNIA
Postal Code:	94621
Entity Type:	CORPORATION:

PROPERTY NUMBERS Total: 1

Property Type	Number	Word Mark
Serial Number:	78571469	PEDIAFLOW

CORRESPONDENCE DATA

Fax Number: (202)585-8080

Correspondence will be sent via US Mail when the fax attempt is unsuccessful.

Phone: 4159848200

Email: dbartels@nixonpeabody.com

Correspondent Name: Donald L. Bartels
Address Line 1: 401 - 9th Street, N.W.

Address Line 2: Suite 900

Address Line 4: Washington, DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 20004-2128

ATTORNEY DOCKET NUMBER:	038973-000011
NAME OF SUBMITTER:	Donald L. Bartels
Signature:	/Donald L. Bartels/
Date:	04/01/2009

	ı
Total Attachments: 49	
source=DOC022#page1.tif	
source=DOC022#page2.tif	
source=DOC022#page3.tif	
source=DOC022#page4.tif	
source=DOC022#page5.tif	
source=DOC022#page6.tif	
source=DOC022#page7.tif	
source=DOC022#page8.tif	
source=DOC022#page9.tif	
source=DOC022#page10.tif	
source=DOC022#page11.tif	
source=DOC022#page12.tif	
source=DOC022#page13.tif	
source=DOC022#page14.tif	
source=DOC022#page15.tif	
source=DOC022#page16.tif	
source=DOC022#page17.tif	
source=DOC022#page18.tif	
source=DOC022#page19.tif	
source=DOC022#page20.tif	
source=DOC022#page21.tif	
source=DOC022#page22.tif	
source=DOC022#page23.tif	
source=DOC022#page24.tif	
source=DOC022#page25.tif	
source=DOC022#page26.tif	
source=DOC022#page27.tif	
source=DOC022#page28.tif	
source=DOC022#page29.tif	
source=DOC022#page30.tif	
source=DOC022#page31.tif	
source=DOC022#page32.tif	
source=DOC022#page33.tif	
source=DOC022#page34.tif	
source=DOC022#page35.tif	
source=DOC022#page36.tif	
source=DOC022#page37.tif	
source=DOC022#page38.tif	
source=DOC022#page39.tif	
source=DOC022#page40.tif	
source=DOC022#page41.tif	
source=DOC022#page42.tif	
source=DOC022#page43.tif source=DOC022#page44.tif	
source=DOC022#page44.til	
source=DOC022#page45.tif source=DOC022#page46.tif	
source=DOC022#page40.til	
source=DOC022#page47.til	
source=DOC022#page49.tif	
σοιτο Εσσυζεπραγοτοιαι	

]	
J	
]	
]	
J	ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT
	BETWEEN
1	WORLD HEART CORPORATION
]	AND
	MEDQUEST PRODUCTS, INC.
	MADE AS OF
	JANUARY 31, 2005
And a section of the	
(Compression)	
7	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1	- INTERPRETATION	1
1.01	Definitions	1
1.02	Headings	5
1.03	Extended Meanings	
1.04	Statutory References	6
1.05	Currency	6
1.06	Schedules	6
1.07	Knowledge	8
ARTICLE 2	- SALE AND PURCHASE	8
2.01	Assets to be Sold and Purchased	8
2.02	Purchase Price	10
2.03	Property Taxes	10
2.04	Assumption of Obligations and Liabilities	11
2.05	Assumption of Existing Obligations and Liabilities	11
2.06	Obligations and Liabilities Not Assumed	11
2.07	Non-Assignable Contracts and Commitments	11
ARTICLE 3	- REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES	12
3.01	Vendor's Representations and Warranties	12
3.02	Survival of Vendor's Representations, Warranties and Covenants	24
3.03	Purchaser's Representations and Warranties	24
3.04	Survival of Purchaser's Representations, Warranties and Covenants	28
ARTICLE 4	- COVENANTS	28
4.01	Covenants of the Vendor	28
4.02	Covenants of the Purchaser	30
		31
4.03	Employees	
4.03 4.04	Employees Cooperation on Tax Matters	دد 35
	Cooperation on Tax Matters Tax Controversies	3 <i>3</i>
4.04	Cooperation on Tax Matters	3 <i>3</i>
4.04 4.05 4.06	Cooperation on Tax Matters Tax Controversies Amended Tax Returns	33 33 34
4.04 4.05 4.06	Cooperation on Tax Matters Tax Controversies Amended Tax Returns - CONDITIONS Conditions for the Benefit of the Purchaser	
4.04 4.05 4.06 ARTICLE 5	Cooperation on Tax Matters Tax Controversies Amended Tax Returns	
4.04 4.05 4.06 ARTICLE 5 5.01 5.02	Cooperation on Tax Matters Tax Controversies Amended Tax Returns - CONDITIONS Conditions for the Benefit of the Purchaser Conditions for the Benefit of the Vendor	
4.04 4.05 4.06 ARTICLE 5 5.01 5.02	Cooperation on Tax Matters Tax Controversies Amended Tax Returns - CONDITIONS Conditions for the Benefit of the Purchaser Conditions for the Benefit of the Vendor - CLOSING ARRANGEMENTS Closing	33 34 34 36 38
4.04 4.05 4.06 ARTICLE 5 5.01 5.02	Cooperation on Tax Matters Tax Controversies Amended Tax Returns - CONDITIONS Conditions for the Benefit of the Purchaser Conditions for the Benefit of the Vendor - CLOSING ARRANGEMENTS Closing Examination of Records and Assets	33 34 34 36 38 38
4.04 4.05 4.06 ARTICLE 5 5.01 5.02 ARTICLE 6 6.01	Cooperation on Tax Matters Tax Controversies Amended Tax Returns - CONDITIONS Conditions for the Benefit of the Purchaser Conditions for the Benefit of the Vendor - CLOSING ARRANGEMENTS Closing Examination of Records and Assets Transfer of Possession	33 34 34 36 38 38
4.04 4.05 4.06 ARTICLE 5 5.01 5.02 ARTICLE 6 6.01 6.02	Cooperation on Tax Matters Tax Controversies Amended Tax Returns - CONDITIONS Conditions for the Benefit of the Purchaser Conditions for the Benefit of the Vendor - CLOSING ARRANGEMENTS Closing Examination of Records and Assets	33 34 34 36 38 38
4.04 4.05 4.06 ARTICLE 5 5.01 5.02 ARTICLE 6 6.01 6.02 6.03 6.04	Cooperation on Tax Matters Tax Controversies Amended Tax Returns - CONDITIONS Conditions for the Benefit of the Purchaser Conditions for the Benefit of the Vendor - CLOSING ARRANGEMENTS Closing Examination of Records and Assets Transfer of Possession Risk of Loss	33 34 34 36 38 38 38
4.04 4.05 4.06 ARTICLE 5 5.01 5.02 ARTICLE 6 6.01 6.02 6.03 6.04	Cooperation on Tax Matters Tax Controversies Amended Tax Returns CONDITIONS Conditions for the Benefit of the Purchaser Conditions for the Benefit of the Vendor CLOSING ARRANGEMENTS Closing Examination of Records and Assets Transfer of Possession Risk of Loss GENERAL Indemnification	33 34 34 36 38 38 38 39
4.04 4.05 4.06 ARTICLE 5 5.01 5.02 ARTICLE 6 6.01 6.02 6.03 6.04 ARTICLE 7	Cooperation on Tax Matters Tax Controversies Amended Tax Returns - CONDITIONS Conditions for the Benefit of the Purchaser Conditions for the Benefit of the Vendor - CLOSING ARRANGEMENTS Closing Examination of Records and Assets Transfer of Possession Risk of Loss	33 34 34 36 38 38 38 39

McCarthy Tétrault LLP DMS-OTTAWA #5633611 v. 8

		- ii -	
	7.03 7.04	Time of the Essence	
	7.05 7.06 7.07	Public Announcements Benefit of the Agreement Entire Agreement	41 41
	7.08 7.09 7.10	Amendments and Waivers Assignment Notices	41
	7.11 7.12 7.13	Remedies Cumulative	43
	7.14 7.15	Counterparts Facsimiles	44
The state of the s			

ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT THIS AGREEMENT is made as of January 31, 2005 BETWEEN World Heart Corporation, a corporation incorporated under the laws of the Province of Ontario (the "Purchaser"), - and -MedQuest Products, Inc., a corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Utah (the "Vendor"), WHEREAS the Vendor carries on the primary business of research and development and manufacturing related to a series of rotary blood pumps; AND WHEREAS the Vendor desires to sell and the Purchaser desires to purchase all of the assets of the Vendor pertaining to its blood pump business and its coating and blade business upon and subject to the terms and conditions set out in this Agreement; NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements herein contained, the parties agree as follows: ARTICLE 1 - INTERPRETATION 1.01 **Definitions** In this Agreement, unless something in the subject matter or context is inconsistent therewith: "Affiliate" has the meaning attributed thereto in the Business Corporations Act (Ontario). "Agreement" means this agreement, including its recitals and schedules, as amended from time to time. "Applicable Law" means any applicable domestic or foreign law including any statute, subordinate legislation or (i) treaty, and any applicable guideline, directive, rule, standard, requirement, policy, order, judgment, (ii) injunction, award or decree of a Governmental Authority having the force of law. "Assets" means the assets and undertaking referred to or described in Section 2.01. "Audited Balance Sheet" means the balance sheet of the Vendor as at the Audited Balance

TRADEMARK REEL: 004004 FRAME: 0531

Sheet Date.

"Audited Balance Sheet Date" means June 30, 2004.

"Audited Financial Statements" has the meaning set out in Section 3.01(k).

"Balance Sheet Date" means December 31, 2004.

"Benefit Plans" has the meaning set out in Section 3.01(yy).

"Business Day" means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or statutory holiday in Ottawa, Ontario or Oakland, California or Salt Lake City, Utah.

"Canadian GAAP" means the generally accepted accounting principles from time to time approved by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants, consistently applied, as in effect from time to time.

"Cash Amounts" has the meaning set out in Section 2.06(2).

"Claims" means all losses, damages, expenses, liabilities (whether accrued, actual, contingent, latent or otherwise), claims and demands of whatever nature or kind including all legal fees and costs on a solicitor and client basis.

"Closing Date" means the later of (i) May 9, 2005, and (ii) a date to be determined by adding that number of days beyond May 9, 2005 that the Time of Closing has been extended due to (A) a regulatory authority in Canada or the United States reviewing, or taking a similar action, with respect to the Purchaser's proxy materials or such other materials as may be required to be submitted to such regulatory authority, (B) procedural delays as a result of such regulatory authority's review, such as the requirement to republish and extend the date on which the Purchaser's meeting of shareholders can occur, and (C) the time required by the Purchaser to respond to any such regulatory authority's requests or inquiries, provided that the Purchaser shall use reasonable commercial efforts to respond to any such requests or inquiries as quickly as possible under the circumstances, or such earlier or later date as may be agreed in writing between the Vendor and the Purchaser.

"Code" means the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

"Common Shares" means the common shares of the Purchaser.

"Compensation Policies" has the meaning set out in Section 3.01(zz).

"Convertible Debentureholders" means the holders of convertible debentures of the Purchaser issued on September 15, 2004 in an aggregate principal amount of \$13,318,750.

"Designated Employees" has the meaning set out in Section 4.03.

"Effective Date" means January 31, 2005.

- "Environmental Law" means any Applicable Law relating to the environment including those pertaining to(i) reporting, licensing, permitting, investigating, remediating and cleaning up in connection
- with any presence or Release, or the threat of the same, of Hazardous Substances, and
- (ii) the manufacture, processing, distribution, use, treatment, storage, disposal, transport, handling and the like of Hazardous Substances, including those pertaining to occupational health and safety.
- "Escrow Agent" means CIBC Mellon Trust Company.
- "Escrow Agreement" means the escrow agreement to be entered into between the Purchaser, the Vendor and the Escrow Agent.
- "Escrowed Shares" means 930,000 Common Shares registered in the name of the Vendor being a partial payment of the Purchase Price to be held by the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Escrow Agreement.
- "ERISA" means the United States Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.
- "Governmental Authority" means any domestic or foreign legislative, executive, judicial or administrative body or person having or purporting to have jurisdiction in the relevant circumstances.
- "Governmental Body" means any governmental authority, or any university or related organization, or any other entity funded by a governmental authority.
- "Hazardous Substance" means any substance or material that is prohibited, controlled or regulated by any Governmental Authority pursuant to Environmental Laws.
- "Indemnitee" has the meaning set out in Section 7.01.
- "Indemnitor" has the meaning set out in Section 7.01.
- "Intellectual Property" means intellectual property of whatever nature and kind including all domestic and foreign trade-marks, business names, trade names, domain names, trading styles, patents, trade secrets, Software, industrial designs and copyrights, whether registered or unregistered, and all applications for registration thereof, and inventions, formulae, recipes, product formulations, processes and processing methods, technology and techniques, know-how and manuals.
- "Interim Period" means the period between the close of business on the Effective Date and the Time of Closing.

- 4-"Inventories" means all materials or inventories purchased for use in the Purchased Business. "Leased Premises" means all leasehold property and interests therein described in Schedule 2.01(b) attached hereto including all rights of way, licences or rights of occupation, easements or other similar rights of the Purchased Business in connection with such leasehold property. "Licensed Intellectual Property" has the meaning set out in Section 2.01(m). "Maverick" means Maverick Venture Management, LLC. "Maverick Loan" has the meaning set out in Section 4.01(7). "NASDAQ" means the means the Nasdaq National Market or the Nasdaq Small Cap Market. "Owned Intellectual Property" has the meaning set out in Section 2.01(1). "Permits" means all permits, consents, waivers, licences, certificates, approvals, authorizations, registrations, franchises, rights, privileges and exemptions, or any item with a similar effect, issued or granted by any person. "Proceeds" has the meaning set out in Section 6.04. "Purchase Agreement" means the purchase agreement entered into between the Purchaser and Maverick dated as of the date hereof. "Purchase Price" has the meaning set out in Section 2.02. "Purchased Business" means the business of rotary blood pumps and coating and blades at present and heretofore carried on by the Vendor. "Release" means any release or discharge of any Hazardous Substance including any discharge, spray, injection, inoculation, abandonment, deposit, spillage, leakage, seepage, pouring, emission, emptying, throwing, dumping, placing, exhausting, escape, leach, migration, dispersal, dispensing or disposal. "SEC" means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. "Software" means all software relating to the Purchased Business including all versions thereof, and all related documentation, manuals, source code and object code, program files, data files, computer related data, field and data definitions and relationships, data definition specifications, data models, program and system logic, interfaces, program modules, routines, sub-routines, algorithms, program architecture, design concepts, system designs, program structure, sequence and organization, screen displays and report layouts, and all other material related to such software. "Subsidiary" has the meaning attributed thereto in the Business Corporations Act (Ontario).

"Tax Returns" has the meaning set out in Section 3.01(uuu).

"Taxes" mean all taxes, assessments, charges, duties, fees, levies or other governmental charges, including, without limitation, all federal, state, provincial, local, foreign and other income, franchise, profits, gross receipts, capital gains, capital stock, transfer, property, sales, use, value-added, occupation, property, excise, severance, windfall profits, stamp, license, payroll, social security, withholding and other taxes, assessments, charges, duties, fees, levies or other governmental charges of any kind whatsoever (whether payable directly or by withholding and whether or not requiring the filing of a Tax Return), all estimated taxes, deficiency assessments, additions to tax, penalties and interest and shall include any liability for such amounts as a result either of being a member of a combined, consolidated, unitary or affiliated group or of a contractual obligation to indemnify any person or other entity.

"Time of Closing" means 10:00 a.m. (Ottawa Time) on the Closing Date.

"Third Party Programs" has the meaning set out in Section 3.01(kk).

"Transfer Taxes" has the meaning set out in Section 4.02(3).

"TSX" mean the Toronto Stock Exchange.

"US GAAP" means the generally accepted accounting principles of the United States consistently applied, as in effect from time to time.

"Warrantholders" means the holders of warrants of the Purchaser issued on September 15, 2004 exercisable in aggregate for 10,655,000 Common Shares.

"WorldHeart Financial Statements" has the meaning set out in Section 3.03(i).

"WorldHeart Reports" has the meaning set out in Section 3.03(h).

1.02 **Headings**

The division of this Agreement into Articles and Sections and the insertion of a table of contents and headings are for convenience of reference only and do not affect the construction or interpretation of this Agreement. The terms "hereof", "hereunder" and similar expressions refer to this Agreement and not to any particular Article, Section or other portion hereof. Unless something in the subject matter or context is inconsistent therewith, references herein to Articles, Sections and Schedules are to Articles and Sections of and Schedules to this Agreement.

1.03 <u>Extended Meanings</u>

In this Agreement words importing the singular number only include the plural and *vice versa*, words importing any gender include all genders and words importing persons include individuals, corporations, limited and unlimited liability companies, general and limited

partnerships, associations, trusts, unincorporated organizations, joint ventures and Governmental Authorities. The term "including" means "including without limiting the generality of the foregoing".

1.04 <u>Statutory References</u>

In this Agreement, unless something in the subject matter or context is inconsistent therewith or unless otherwise herein provided, a reference to any statute is to that statute as now enacted or as the same may from time to time be amended, re-enacted or replaced and includes any regulations made thereunder.

1.05 Currency

All references to currency herein are to lawful money of the United States unless otherwise specified.

1.06 Schedules

The following are the Schedules to this Agreement:

Schedule Heading	Schedule Reference
Leased Premises	2.01(b)
Tangible Assets	2.01(e)
Leases of Machinery and Equipment	2.01(f)
Franchise, License and Management Agreements	2.01(j)
Additional Contracts and Commitments	2.01(j)(ii)
Licenses, Registrations and Permits	2.01(k)
Owned Intellectual Property	2.01(1)
Licensed Intellectual Property	2.01(m)
Liabilities Prior to Closing	2.05
Cash Amounts	2.06(2)
Rights to Acquire Stock in Vendor	3.01(h)
Audited Financial Statements of Vendor	3.01(k)

McCarthy Tétrault LLP DMS-OTTAWA #5633611 v. 8

Unaudited Financial Statements of Vendor	3.01(1)
Encumbrances	3.01(r)
Defaults	3.01(w)
Real Property Leases	3.01(y)
Ownership Interests	3.01(z)
Royalties and License Fees	3.01(ff)
Consents to License and Sub-license	3.01(gg)
Third Party Programs	3.01(kk)
Distributors, Sales Agents and Representatives	3.01(mm)
Licences, Maintenance or Support Agreements, Development Contracts	3.01(nn)
Governmental Body Funding	3.01(00)
Employment and Consulting Contracts	3.01(ss)
Employee Information	3.01(tt)
Benefit Plans	3.01(yy)
Compensation Policies	3.01(zz)
Insurance Policies	3.01(eeee)
Rights to Acquire Stock in Purchaser	3.03(f)
Designated Employees	4.03
Form of General Conveyance Agreement	5.01(1)(1)
Distribution of Purchase Price by Vendor	5.01(1)(m)
Consents	5.01(1)(n)
Form of Consulting Agreement	5.01(1) (r)

McCarthy Tétrault LLP DMS-OTTAWA #5633611 v. 8

1.07 Knowledge

For purposes of the representations and warranties made by the Vendor in Section 3.01, the Vendor will be deemed to have "Knowledge" of a particular fact or other matter if any of Pratap Khanwilkar, Barbara Madsen and Gill Bearnson (i) has, or at any time had, actual awareness of that fact or matter, or (ii) would reasonably be expected to discover or otherwise become aware of that fact or matter by virtue of that individual's position, duties or responsibilities with the Vendor.

For purposes of the representations and warranties made by the Purchaser in Section 3.03, the Purchaser will be deemed to have "Knowledge" of a particular fact or other matter if any of Jal Jassawalla and Mark Goudie (i) has, or at any time had, actual awareness of that fact or matter, or (ii) would reasonably be expected to discover or otherwise become aware of that fact or matter by virtue of that individual's position, duties or responsibilities with the Purchaser.

ARTICLE 2 - SALE AND PÚRCHASE

2.01 Assets to be Sold and Purchased

Upon and subject to the terms and conditions hereof, the Vendor will sell to the Purchaser and the Purchaser will purchase from the Vendor, as of and with effect from the opening of business on the Closing Date, all of the right, title, benefit and interest of the Vendor in and to the following assets:

- (a) cash less any Cash Amounts described in Section 2.06;
- (b) the Leased Premises described in Schedule 2.01(b);
- (c) all structures, erections, improvements, appurtenances and fixtures situate on or forming part of the Leased Premises other than the fixed machinery and fixed equipment referred to in Section 2.01(d);
- (d) all fixed machinery and fixed equipment situate on or forming part of the Leased Premises;
- (e) all other machinery and equipment and all vehicles, tools, spare parts, handling equipment, furniture, furnishings, computer hardware and peripheral equipment, supplies and accessories of the Purchased Business, including the machinery and equipment described in Schedule 2.01(e);
- (f) all leases of machinery and equipment in which the Vendor is lessee relating to the Purchased Business described in Schedule 2.01(f);

- (g) all Inventories;
- (h) all new and unused production, shipping and packaging supplies of the Purchased Business;
- (i) all the accounts receivable of the Purchased Business;
- (j) all franchise, licence or management agreements described in Schedule 2.01(j) and all other contracts or commitments relating to the Purchased Business including,
 - (i) all forward commitments to the Vendor for supplies or materials entered into in the usual and ordinary course of the Purchased Business for use in the Purchased Business whether or not there are any written contracts with respect thereto; and
 - (ii) the further contracts and commitments described in Schedule 2.01(j)(ii);
- (k) all licences, registrations and permits required to carry on the Purchased Business in its usual and ordinary course including the licences, registrations and permits listed or described in Schedule 2.01(k);
- (l) all Intellectual Property owned by the Vendor and belonging to or used in the Purchased Business (the "Owned Intellectual Property"), including the Intellectual Property listed in Schedule 2.01(1);
- (m) all Intellectual Property not owned by the Vendor but belonging to or used in the Purchased Business (the "Licensed Intellectual Property"), including the right to use the Intellectual Property listed in Schedule 2.01(m);
- (n) the goodwill of the Purchased Business, including
 - (i) the exclusive right to the Purchaser to represent itself as carrying on the Purchased Business in continuation of and in succession to the Vendor and the right to use any words indicating that the Purchased Business is so carried on, including the use if otherwise permitted by law of the corporate name "MedQuest", and the domain name "www.medquest-inc.com", and
 - (ii) all records of sales, customer lists and supplier lists of or used in connection with the Purchased Business;
- (o) all securities held by the Vendor in any corporation or other entity;
- (p) all pre-paid expenses and deposits relating to the Purchased Business including all pre-paid Taxes and water rates, all pre-paid purchases of gas, oil and hydro, all pre-paid lease payments and all items referred to in Section 4.03(2);

- (q) all plans and specifications in the Vendor's possession or under its control relating to the structures, erections, improvements, appurtenances and fixtures situate on or forming part of the Leased Premises including all such electrical, mechanical and structural drawings related thereto as are in the possession or under the control of the Vendor; and
- (r) all personnel records, inspection records and other records, books, documents and data bases recorded or stored by means of any device, including in electronic form, relating to the Purchased Business, the Assets and those employees who are, pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement, to be employed by the Purchaser as are in the possession or under the control of the Vendor.

2.02 <u>Purchase Price</u>

- (1) The purchase price to the Vendor for the Assets (the "Purchase Price") shall consist of (i) the issuance by the Purchaser to the Vendor of 9,300,000 Common Shares at a price per share of \$1.35 per share, (ii) a cash amount of \$10,000, and (iii) the assumption of the liabilities assumed under Sections 2.04 and 2.05 at the Closing Date.
 - (2) At the Time of Closing, the Purchaser will pay:
 - (a) a partial payment of the Purchase Price, by issuing to the Vendor 8,370,000 Common Shares evidenced by a certificate in the name of the Vendor, such certificate bearing such legends as are required under applicable securities laws;
 - (b) partial payment of the Purchase Price by issuing the Escrowed Shares in the name of the Vendor and providing the Escrowed Shares to the Escrow Agent on the Closing Date, evidenced by a certificate in the name of the Vendor, such certificate bearing such legends as are required under applicable securities laws; and
 - (c) \$10,000 by the wire transfer at the Time of Closing of immediately available funds to an account specified by the Vendor.
- (3) On the Closing Date, the Vendor agrees to deposit in escrow the securities constituting the Escrowed Shares to be held by the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Escrow Agreement.

2.03 Property Taxes

All property Taxes imposed on or with respect to the purchased assets for the tax year that includes the Closing Date will be prorated between the Vendor and the Purchaser as of the Closing Date. The Vendor will be liable for the portion of such Taxes based on the number of days in the year occurring prior to the Closing Date, and the Purchaser will be liable for the portion of such Taxes based on the number of days in the year occurring on and after the Closing Date. For any year in which an apportionment is required, the Purchaser will file all required

Tax Returns incident to these Taxes assessed for the year in which the Closing Date occurs that are not paid by the Vendor as of the Closing Date and the Vendor shall pay to the Purchaser the Taxes for which the Vendor is liable under the preceding sentence no later than 15 days prior to the due date of such Taxes.

2.04 Assumption of Obligations and Liabilities

The Purchaser will assume, fulfil and perform the obligations and liabilities of the Vendor accruing after the close of business on the day before the Closing Date under the contracts and other commitments of the Vendor relating to the Purchased Business specifically described in Schedules 2.01(j), 2.01(j)(ii), 2.01(m), 3.01(y) and 3.01(nn).

2.05 Assumption of Existing Obligations and Liabilities

The Purchaser will assume, fulfil and perform the obligations and liabilities of the Vendor accruing before the close of business on the day before the Closing Date under the contracts and other commitments of the Vendor relating to the Purchased Business specifically described in Schedule 2.05.

2.06 Obligations and Liabilities Not Assumed

- (1) Except as provided in this Agreement, the Purchaser does not assume and will not be liable for any obligations or liabilities of the Vendor whatsoever including any Taxes under the *Income Tax Act* (Canada) ("Tax Act") or the United States *Internal Revenue Code* ("Code") or any other Taxes whatsoever that may be or become payable by the Vendor including any income or corporation Taxes resulting from or arising as a consequence of the sale by the Vendor to the Purchaser of the Assets hereunder.
- (2) The Purchaser will permit the Vendor to retain cash in an amount of \$325,000 and such other amounts as the Purchaser may determine in its sole discretion at the Time of Closing ("Cash Amounts") for payment of certain obligations not assumed by the Purchaser and identified by the Vendor and the Purchaser on Schedule 2.06(2) on or prior to the day immediately preceding the Closing Date.

2.07 Non-Assignable Contracts and Commitments

- (1) The Vendor will use reasonable efforts (other than the payment of money or assumption of obligations) to obtain any third party consents or waivers necessary to permit the assignment to, and assumption by, the Purchaser of all the contracts and other commitments to be assigned to and assumed by the Purchaser pursuant to this Agreement.
- (2) Nothing in this Agreement will constitute an agreement to assign or an attempted assignment of any contract or other commitment for which any requisite consent or waiver to the assignment thereof has not been obtained. Subject to the provisions of Section 5.01(1), to the extent permitted by Applicable Law, if any requisite consent or waiver has not been obtained on or prior to Closing, the applicable contract or other commitment will be held by the Vendor in

trust for the benefit of the Purchaser and the Purchaser will perform the obligations of the Vendor thereunder and be entitled to receive all money becoming due and payable under and other benefits derived from the contract or other commitment immediately after receipt by the Vendor.

ARTICLE 3 - REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

3.01 <u>Vendor's Representations and Warranties</u>

The Vendor represents and warrants to the Purchaser that:

Corporate

- (a) The Vendor is a corporation duly incorporated, organized and subsisting under the laws of the State of Utah with the corporate power to own its assets and to carry on its business and has made all necessary filings under all applicable corporate, securities and taxation laws or any other laws to which the Vendor is subject.
- (b) The Vendor has the power, authority and right to enter into and deliver this Agreement and to transfer the legal and beneficial title and ownership of the Assets to the Purchaser free and clear of all liens, charges, encumbrances and any other rights of others.
- (c) This Agreement constitutes a valid and legally binding obligation of the Vendor, enforceable against the Vendor in accordance with its terms subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization and other laws of general application limiting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally and to the fact that specific performance is an equitable remedy available only in the discretion of the court.
- (d) There is no contract, option or any other right of another binding upon or which at any time in the future may become binding upon the Vendor to sell, transfer, assign, pledge, charge, mortgage or in any other way dispose of or encumber any of the Assets other than pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement or pursuant to purchase orders accepted by the Vendor in the usual and ordinary course of the Purchased Business.
- (e) Neither the entering into nor the delivery of this Agreement nor the completion of the transactions contemplated hereby by the Vendor will result in the violation of:
 - any of the provisions of the incorporation documents or by-laws of the Vendor;
 - (ii) any material agreement or other instrument to which the Vendor is a party or by which the Vendor is bound; or
 - (iii) any Applicable Law.

- (f) No governmental approval or other consent is required to be obtained or made by the Vendor in connection with the execution and delivery of this Agreement or the Escrow Agreement or the consummation or performance of the transactions contemplated thereby.
- (g) The authorized capital of the Vendor consists of 40,000,000 common shares and 25,000,000 preferred shares of which 127,595 common shares and 6,675,782 preferred shares are issued and outstanding as of the date hereof.
- (h) Except as set forth in Schedule 3.01(h), (i) no subscription, warrant, option, convertible security or other right (contingent or otherwise) to purchase or acquire any shares of capital stock of the Vendor is authorized or outstanding; and (ii) the Vendor does not have any obligation (contingent or otherwise) to issue any subscription, warrant, option, convertible security or other such right or to issue or distribute to holders of any shares of its capital stock any evidence of indebtedness or assets of the Vendor.
- (i) On or prior to the Effective Date, the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by the Vendor and the consummation by the Vendor of the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly and validly approved by the board of directors of the Vendor.

Financial

- (j) The books and records of the Vendor relating to the Purchased Business are complete, true and correct and present fairly and disclose in all material respects the financial position of the Purchased Business and all material financial transactions of the Vendor relating to the Purchased Business have been accurately recorded in such books and records and, such books and records have been prepared in accordance with US GAAP, consistently applied.
- (k) The audited financial statements of the Vendor, consisting of the Audited Balance Sheet and statements of income, retained earnings and changes in financial position for the period ended on the Audited Balance Sheet Date, together with the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, certified public accountants, thereon and the notes thereto (collectively, the "Audited Financial Statements"), a copy of which is attached hereto as Schedule 3.01(k):
 - (i) are in accordance with the books and accounts of the Vendor as at the Audited Balance Sheet Date,
 - (ii) are complete, true and correct and present fairly the financial position of the Vendor as at the Audited Balance Sheet Date,
 - (iii) have been prepared in accordance US GAAP consistently applied, and

- (iv) present fairly all of the assets and liabilities of the Vendor as at the Audited Balance Sheet Date including all contingent liabilities of the Vendor as at the Audited Balance Sheet Date.
- (l) The unaudited financial statements of the Vendor for the period ended on the Balance Sheet Date, consisting of the balance sheet, statements of income, retained earnings and changes in financial position for the period ended on the Balance Sheet Date (collectively, the "Unaudited Financial Statements"), a copy of which is attached hereto as Schedule 3.01(1):
 - (i) are in accordance with the books and accounts of the Vendor as at the Balance Sheet Date;
 - (ii) are true and correct and present fairly the financial position of the Vendor as at the Balance Sheet Date;
 - (iii) have been prepared in accordance with US GAAP consistently applied;
 - (iv) present fairly all the assets and liabilities of the Vendor as at the Balance Sheet Date including all contingent liabilities of the Vendor as at the Balance Sheet Date.
- (m) Since the Balance Sheet Date the Purchased Business has been carried on in its usual and ordinary course and the Vendor has not entered into any transaction or incurred any liabilities out of the usual and ordinary course of the Purchased Business.
- (n) Since the Balance Sheet Date there has been no change in the affairs, business, prospects, operations or condition of the Purchased Business, financial or otherwise, whether arising as a result of any legislative or regulatory change, revocation of any licence or right to do business, fire, explosion, accident, casualty, labour dispute, flood, drought, riot, storm, condemnation, act of God, public force or otherwise, except changes occurring in the usual and ordinary course of business that have not adversely affected the affairs, business, prospects, operations or condition of the Purchased Business, financial or otherwise.
- (o) No current or former director, officer, shareholder or employee of the Vendor or any person not dealing at arm's length within the meaning of the Code with any such person or with the Vendor is indebted to the Vendor.
- (p) The Vendor maintains a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that (i) transactions are executed in accordance with management's general or specific authorizations, (ii) transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP and to maintain asset accountability, (iii) access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management's general or specific authorization, and (iv) the

recorded accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences. Since the Audited Balance Sheet Date, there have been no significant changes in the Vendor's internal controls over financial reporting or, to the Vendor's Knowledge, in other factors that would, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a material adverse effect on the affairs, business, prospects, operations or condition of the Purchased Business, financial or otherwise.

Neither the Vendor, nor, to the Vendor's Knowledge, any director, officer, (q) employee, auditor, accountant or representative of the Vendor, has received or otherwise had or obtained knowledge of any written or material unwritten complaint, allegation, assertion or claim regarding the accounting or auditing practices, procedures, methodologies or methods of the Vendor or its internal accounting controls, including any complaint, allegation, assertion or claim of any type that the Vendor has engaged in improper or illegal accounting or auditing practices and no attorney representing the Vendor, whether or not employed by the Vendor, has reported evidence of a material violation of securities laws, breach of fiduciary duty or similar violation by the Vendor or any of its officers, directors, employees or agents to the Vendor or the board of directors or any committee thereof or to any director or officer of the Vendor. There have been no internal investigations regarding accounting or revenue recognition discussed with, reviewed by or initiated at the direction of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, or the Vendor's board of directors or any committee thereof.

Condition of Assets

- (r) The Vendor is the owner of the Assets with a valid lease to the Leased Premises and good title to all the other Assets, free and clear of all liens, charges, encumbrances and any other rights of others other than those set out in Schedule 3.01(r) or as otherwise disclosed herein.
- (s) The accounts receivable of the Purchased Business are good accounts receivable collectible within 90 days and are not subject to any defence, counterclaim or set-off.
- (t) All machinery and equipment owned or used by the Vendor in the Purchased Business have been properly maintained and are in good working order for the purposes of on-going operation, subject to ordinary wear and tear for machinery and equipment of comparable age.
- (u) All of the Inventories are reasonably fit for their purpose.

Contracts and Commitments

- (v) The Vendor is not a party to any contract or commitment relating to the Purchased Business outside the usual and ordinary course of the Purchased Business and is not a party to any contract or commitment relating to the Purchased Business, except such contracts or commitments as are listed in Schedules 2.01(j), 2.01(j)(ii), 2.01(m), 3.01(nn), 3.01(ss) attached hereto.
- (w) Except as listed in Schedule 3.01(w) attached hereto, the Vendor is not in default or breach of any contract or commitment referred to in Sections 2.01(j), 2.01(j)(ii). 2.01(m), 3.01(nn) and 3.01(ss) and there exists no condition, event or act that, with the giving of notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute such a default or breach, and all such contracts and commitments are in good standing and in full force and effect without amendment thereto and the Vendor is entitled to all benefits thereunder.
- (x) The Vendor is not a party to or bound by any guarantee, indemnification, surety or similar obligation pertaining to the Purchased Business.
- (y) Except as listed in Schedule 3.01(y) attached hereto, the Vendor is not a party to any lease or agreement in the nature of a lease for real property, whether as lessor or lessee pertaining to the Purchased Business.
- (z) The Vendor does not have any subsidiaries or any agreements, options or commitments to acquire any securities of any corporation or to acquire or lease any real property or assets to be used in or in connection with the Purchased Business other than, in the latter case, those assets that are to be used in the usual and ordinary course of business of the Purchased Business; and except as set forth in Schedule 3.01(z) holds no securities in any other corporation or other entity.
- (aa) There are no outstanding orders, notices or similar requirements relating to the Purchased Business or to the Assets issued by any Governmental Authority and there are no matters under discussion with any Governmental Authority relating to orders, notices or similar requirements.

Intellectual Property

- (bb) The Vendor has the exclusive right to use the Owned Intellectual Property except to the extent the Vendor has licensed, or otherwise has granted any right (whether or not currently exercisable) or interest in, the Owned Intellectual Property to others, which licences or other grants are listed in Schedule 2.01(l).
- (cc) The Vendor has the exclusive right to use the Licensed Intellectual Property except to the extent the rights are identified in Schedule 2.01(m) as being non-exclusive.

- (dd) The Owned Intellectual Property is in good standing and has been duly registered or patented or applications to register or patent the same have been filed in all appropriate offices to preserve the rights therein and of the Vendor thereto. Schedule 2.01(1) accurately identifies and describes each item of Owned Intellectual Property in which the Vendor has an ownership interest of any nature (whether exclusively, jointly with another person or otherwise) and Schedule 2.01(1) also identifies any other person or entity that has an ownership interest in such item of Owned Intellectual Property and the nature of such ownership interest.
- (ee) The Intellectual Property listed on Schedules 2.01(l) and 2.01(m) includes all of the Intellectual Property used in or required for the proper carrying on of the Purchased Business.
- (ff) The Vendor is not a party to any contract or commitment to pay any royalty, licence or other fee with respect to the use of the Owned Intellectual Property or the Licensed Intellectual Property except as set out in Schedule 3.01(ff).
- (gg) No consents or notices are required in order for the Intellectual Property to be licensed or sub-licensed to any third party except as set out in Schedule 3.01(gg).
- (hh) The conduct of the Purchased Business does not involve any infringement, misuse or misappropriation of any Intellectual Property rights of third parties.
- (ii) To the Vendor's Knowledge, the Owned Intellectual Property and the Licensed Intellectual Property are valid or enforceable. No infringement, misuse or misappropriation of the Owned Intellectual Property has occurred.
- All employees and independent contractors at the time they developed Intellectual Property for the Vendor assigned their intellectual property rights in the Intellectual Property to the Vendor pursuant to written agreements. A copy of each of those agreements has been provided to the Purchaser.
- (kk) Except for the third party software ("Third Party Programs") listed in Schedule 3.01(kk), the Software neither contains nor embodies nor uses nor requires any third party software, including development tools and utilities, and the Software, together with the Third Party Programs, contains all material necessary for the continued maintenance and development of the Software.
- (II) Copies of all licence and maintenance agreements for the Third Party Programs have been made available by the Vendor to the Purchaser, except in respect of Third Party Programs that are shrinkwrapped software and that are purchased off-the-shelf by the Vendor in order to be passed through to the Vendor's customers, and except as set forth in Schedule 3.01(kk) all Third Party Programs may be assigned and transferred to the Purchaser.

- (mm) Except as listed in Schedule 3.01(mm), there are no, and have never been any, distributors, sales agents, representatives or other persons who have or had rights to market or license the Assets.
- (nn) Schedule 3.01(nn) lists all the other inbound or outbound licences, maintenance or support agreements, development contracts and all other agreements (other than requests for proposals and proposals which are referred to in such agreements), copies of each of which have been made available to the Purchaser.
- (oo) Except as listed in Schedule 3.01(oo), no funding, facilities or personnel of any Governmental Body were used, directly or indirectly, to develop or create, in whole or in part, the Owned Intellectual Property.
- (pp) The Vendor has taken all reasonable steps to maintain the confidentiality of and otherwise protect and enforce its rights in all proprietary information held by the Vendor, or purported to be held by the Vendor, as a trade secret.
- (qq) The Vendor is not now nor has ever been a member or promoter of, or a contributor to, any industry standards body or similar organization that could require or obligate the Vendor to grant or offer to any other person any licence or right to any Owned Intellectual Property.

Employees

- (rr) The Vendor is not a party to or bound by any contract or commitment to pay any management fee pertaining to the Purchased Business.
- (ss) Except as set forth in Schedule 3.01(ss), the Vendor does not have any written or oral employment contract or consulting contract relating to the Purchased Business with any person whomsoever.
- (tt) Schedule 3.01(tt) sets out:
 - (i) the names of all employees or consultants of the Purchased Business;
 - (ii) their annual salary or remuneration;
 - (iii) their job title;
 - (iv) their total length of employment including any prior employment as disclosed in the Vendor's records that would affect calculation of years of service for purposes of benefit entitlement (including statutory notice or statutory severance pay) or pension entitlement;
 - (v) the length of any consulting contract;

- (vi) whether any such employees are on any approved or statutory leave of absence and, if so, the reason for the absence; and
- (vii) other terms and conditions of their employment (other than Benefit Plans and Compensation Policies).
- (uu) The Vendor is not bound by or a party to any collective bargaining agreement relating to the Purchased Business.
- (vv) There are no actual, threatened or pending organizing activities of any trade union, council of trade unions, employee bargaining agency or affiliated bargaining agent or any actual, threatened or pending unfair labour practice complaints, strikes, work stoppages, picketing, lock-outs, hand-billings, boycotts, slowdowns, arbitrations, grievances, complaints, charges or similar labour related disputes or proceedings pertaining to the Purchased Business, and there have not been any such activities or disputes or proceedings within the last year.
- (ww) All vacation pay for employees of the Purchased Business is properly reflected and accrued in the books and accounts of the Vendor.
- (xx) Since the Balance Sheet Date, there have been no changes in the terms and conditions of employment of any employees of the Purchased Business, including their salaries, remuneration and any other payments to them, and there have been no changes in any remuneration payable or benefits provided to any officer, director, consultant, independent or dependent contractor or agent of the Purchased Business, and the Vendor has not agreed or otherwise become committed to change any of the foregoing since that date.

Benefits Plans

- (yy) Schedule 3.01(yy) contains a list of every benefit and employment plan, program, agreement or arrangement (whether written or unwritten and whether or not subject to ERISA) maintained, contributed to, or provided by the Vendor thereof for the benefit of any of its employees or dependents or independent contractors of the Vendor or their respective dependants or beneficiaries (the "Benefit Plans") including all bonus, deferred compensation, incentive compensation, share purchase, share option, stock appreciation, phantom stock, savings, profit sharing, severance or termination pay, health or other medical, life, disability or other insurance (whether insured or self-insured), supplementary unemployment benefit, pension, retirement and supplementary retirement plans, programs, agreements and arrangements.
- (zz) Schedule 3.01(zz) contains a list of all written or unwritten compensation policies and practices of the Vendor ("Compensation Policies") applicable to employees and dependents and independent contractors of the Vendor.

- (aaa) The Vendor has delivered to the Purchaser true, complete and up-to-date copies of all Benefit Plans and Compensation Policies and all amendments thereto together with all summary descriptions of the Benefit Plans and Compensation Policies provided to past or present participants therein.
- (bbb) No fact, condition or circumstance exists that would materially affect the information contained in the documents provided pursuant to Section 3.01(yy) and, in particular, no promises or commitments have been made by the Vendor to amend any Benefit Plan or Compensation Policy.
- (ccc) Neither the Vendor nor any of its Affiliates (nor any employer (whether or not incorporated) that would be treated together with the Vendor or any such Affiliate as a single employer within the meaning of Section 414 of the Code has ever maintained or contributed to, or had any obligation to contribute to (or borne any liability with respect to) any "employee pension benefit plan," within the meaning of Section 3(2) of ERISA, that is a "multiemployer plan," within the meaning of Section 3(37) of ERISA, or subject to Section 412 of the Code, or Section 302 or Title IV of ERISA.
- (ddd) Each Benefit Plan intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code, has, as currently in effect, been determined to be so qualified by the United States Internal Revenue Service, and since the date of each such determination, no event has occurred and no condition or circumstance has existed that resulted or is likely to result in the revocation of any such determination.
- (eee) The Vendor has not incurred, and no event has occurred and no condition or circumstance exists that could result, directly or indirectly, in, any unsatisfied liability (including, without limitation, any indirect, contingent or secondary liability) of the Vendor under Title IV of ERISA or Section 412 of the Code or Section 302 of ERISA arising in connection with any employee pension benefit plan covered or previously covered by Title IV of ERISA or such sections of the Code or ERISA.
- (fff) The Vendor has complied in all respects with the applicable requirements of Part 6 of Subtitle B of Title I of ERISA and Section 4980B of the Code ("COBRA"), and will comply with all COBRA obligations arising in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, and the Vendor is not subject to any liability as a result of any failure to administer or operate any "group health plan" (as defined in COBRA) in compliance with COBRA.
- (ggg) The execution of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, do not constitute a triggering event under any Benefit Plan or Compensation Policy or other policy, arrangement, statement, commitment or agreement, whether or not legally enforceable, which (either alone or upon the occurrence of any additional or subsequent event) will or may result in any

payment (whether of severance pay or otherwise), vesting or increase in benefits to any present or former employee or director of the Vendor.

Leased Premises

- (hhh) The operations of the Purchased Business from the Leased Premises are not subject to any restriction or limitation that would materially adversely affect the Purchased Business and are not in contravention of any law or regulation or of any decree or order of any court or other body having jurisdiction.
- (iii) The Vendor has not received notice of any assessment or any capital charges or levies assessed or proposed to be assessed against any of the Assets by a Governmental Authority or that any Governmental Authority intends to require the Vendor to pay for any future roads, utilities or services relating to the Leased Premises.
- (jjj) All improvements (including all plant, buildings, structures, erections, appurtenances and fixtures) situate on or forming part of the Leased Premises were completed in a good and competent manner and in all material respects in accordance with the requirements of all applicable Governmental Authorities and all such improvements are free of material defect.
- (kkk) The Leased Premises are serviced by all private and public utility services that are necessary for the operations of the Purchased Business on the Leased Premises.

Environmental

- (III) The Purchased Business, as carried on by the Vendor, and the Assets are in compliance in all material respects with all Environmental Laws and there are no facts relating to the past or present operation of the Purchased Business that could give rise to a notice of non-compliance with any Environmental Law, or any liability under Environmental Laws.
- (mmm)All environmental Permits used in or required to carry on the Purchased Business in its usual and ordinary course are in full force and effect and are transferable to the Purchaser on Closing.
- (nnn) The Vendor has not used any of the facilities or Leased Premises pertaining to the Purchased Business, or permitted them to be used, to generate, manufacture, refine, treat, transport, store, handle, dispose, transfer, produce or process Hazardous Substances except in compliance in all material respects with all Environmental Laws. None of the Leased Premises has been used for or been designated as a waste disposal site.

- (000) To the Vendor's Knowledge, there are no pending changes to Environmental Laws that would render illegal, or materially restrict, the operation of the Purchased Business in its usual and ordinary course.
- (ppp) The Vendor has not been convicted of an offence or been subjected to any judgment, injunction or other proceeding or been fined or otherwise sentenced for non-compliance with any Environmental Laws, and it has not settled any prosecution or other proceeding short of conviction in connection therewith, in relation to the Purchased Business.
- (qqq) The Vendor has not caused or permitted the Release of any Hazardous Substance at, on or under the Leased Premises, or the Release of any Hazardous Substance off-site of the Leased Premises in relation to the Purchased Business, except in compliance in all material respects with Environmental Laws.
- (rrr) The Vendor has not breached any obligation to report a Release to any person imposed by any Environmental Law.

Taxes

- (sss) The Purchaser is acquiring the ownership, possession or use under this Agreement of all or substantially all of the property that can reasonably be regarded as being necessary for the Purchaser to be capable of carrying on the Purchased Business as a business within the meaning of section 167 of the Excise Tax Act (Canada).
- (ttt) There are no liens for Taxes upon the Assets, except for statutory liens for current Taxes not yet due.
- (uuu) The Vendor has timely filed or caused to be timely filed with the appropriate taxing authorities all tax returns, statements, forms and reports (including elections, declarations, disclosures, schedules, estimates and information Tax Returns) for Taxes ("Tax Returns") that are required to be filed with respect to the Purchased Business and such Tax Returns have been true, correct and complete in all material respects.
- (vvv) All Taxes due with respect to the Purchased Business for all taxable years or other taxable periods that end on or before the Closing Date and, with respect to any taxable year or other taxable period beginning on or before and ending after the Closing Date, the portion of such taxable year or period ending on and including the Closing Date ("Pre-Closing Period") have been paid or accrued and fully provided for in accordance with US GAAP on the Balance Sheet.
- (www) The Vendor has not been the subject of an audit or other examination of Taxes by the tax authorities of any nation, state or locality with respect to the Purchased Business; (ii) no such audit is contemplated or pending; and (iii) the Vendor has not received any written notices from any taxing authority relating to any issue

- which could affect the Tax liability with respect to the Purchased Business after the Closing Date.
- (xxx) The Vendor is not presently contesting any Tax liability with respect to the Purchased Business before any court, tribunal or agency.
- (yyy) All Taxes which the Vendor is (or was) required by law to withhold or collect in connection with the Purchased Business have been duly withheld or collected, and have been timely paid over to the proper authorities to the extent due and payable.

General

- (zzz) There are no actions, suits or proceedings (whether or not purportedly on behalf of the Vendor):
 - (i) pending or threatened against or adversely affecting, or which could adversely affect, the Purchased Business or the Assets, or
 - (ii) before or by any Governmental Authority.
- (aaaa) The Vendor is not conducting the Purchased Business in any jurisdiction other than the State of Utah.
- (bbbb) The Vendor has no clinical sites and has the use of only one animal testing facility located on the premises of the University of Utah.
- (cccc) The Vendor is conducting the Purchased Business in material compliance with all Applicable Laws, is not in breach of any such Applicable Laws and is duly licensed, registered or qualified in the State of Utah and all municipalities thereof in which the Vendor carries on the Purchased Business to enable the Purchased Business to be carried on as now conducted and its assets to be owned, leased and operated, and all such licences, registrations and qualifications are valid and subsisting and in good standing and none of the same contains any term, provision, condition or limitation which has or may have a material adverse effect on the operation of the Purchased Business or which may be affected by the completion of the transactions contemplated hereby.
- (dddd) Schedule 2.01(k) is a true and complete list of all licences, registrations and permits necessary or required to enable the Purchased Business to be carried on as now conducted and its assets to be owned, leased and operated and all such licences, registrations and permits are transferable by the Vendor to the Purchaser on the Closing Date.
- (eeee) Attached as Schedule 3.01(eeee) is a true and complete list of all insurance policies maintained by the Vendor that also specifies the insurer, the amount of

the coverage, the type of insurance, the policy number and any pending claims thereunder.

- (ffff) The Vendor has not received (i) any notice of cancellation of any policy described in Schedule 3.01(eeee) or refusal of coverage thereunder, (ii) any notice that any issuer of such policy has filed for protection under applicable bankruptcy laws or is otherwise in the process of liquidating or has been liquidated, or (iii) any other indication that such policies are no longer in full force or effect or that the issuer of any such policy is no longer willing or able to perform its obligations hereunder.
- (gggg) Except for matters reflected and reserved against in the Balance Sheet, the Vendor has not incurred any liabilities or obligations (whether absolute, accrued, contingent, fixed or otherwise, or whether due or to become due) of any nature that would be required by US GAAP to be reflected on a balance sheet of the Vendor (including the notes thereto).
- (hhhh) Neither the Vendor nor to the best of the Vendor's Knowledge, any Affiliate of the Vendor beneficially owns any Common Shares.

3.02 Survival of Vendor's Representations, Warranties and Covenants

- (1) The representations and warranties of the Vendor set forth in Section 3.01 will survive the completion of the sale and purchase of the Assets herein provided for and, notwithstanding such completion, will continue in full force and effect for the benefit of the Purchaser for a period of one year from the Closing Date.
- (2) The covenants of the Vendor set forth in this Agreement (other than the covenant set forth in Section 4.01(2) with respect to representations and warranties being true at the Time of Closing) will survive the completion of the sale and purchase of the Assets herein provided for and, notwithstanding such completion, will continue in full force and effect for the benefit of the Purchaser in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

3.03 Purchaser's Representations and Warranties

The Purchaser represents and warrants to the Vendor that:

Corporate

(a) The Purchaser is a corporation duly incorporated, organized and subsisting under the laws of the Province of Ontario with the corporate power to own its assets and to carry on its business and has made all necessary material filings under all applicable corporate, securities and taxation laws or any other laws to which the Purchaser is subject.

- (b) The Purchaser has the power, authority and right to enter into and deliver this Agreement and to transfer the legal and beneficial title and ownership of the Shares to the Vendor free and clear of all liens, charges, encumbrances and any other rights of others.
- (c) This Agreement constitutes a valid and legally binding obligation of the Purchaser, enforceable against the Purchaser in accordance with its terms subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization and other laws of general application limiting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally and to the fact that specific performance is an equitable remedy available only in the discretion of the court.
- (d) Neither the entering into nor the delivery of this Agreement nor the completion of the transactions contemplated hereby by the Purchaser will result in the violation of:
 - (i) any of the provisions of the incorporation documents or by-laws of the Purchaser;
 - (ii) any material agreement or other instrument to which the Purchaser is a party or by which the Purchaser is bound; or
 - (iii) any Applicable Law.
- (e) The authorized capital of the Purchaser consists of unlimited common shares and unlimited preferred shares issuable in series of which 16,430,470 Common Shares and no preferred shares are issued and outstanding as of the date hereof. Upon completion of the Closing, the Common Shares issued to the Vendor, including the Escrowed Shares, will have been duly authorized and be validly issued and outstanding, as fully paid and non-assessable shares in the capital of the Purchaser.
- (f) Except as provided in this Agreement or as set forth in Schedule 3.03(f), (i) no subscription, warrant, option, convertible security or other right (contingent or otherwise) to purchase or acquire any shares of the capital stock of the Purchaser or the Purchaser Subsidiaries are authorized or outstanding, (ii) neither the Purchaser nor the Purchaser Subsidiaries have any obligation (contingent or otherwise) to issue any subscription, warrant, option (except option grants to Purchaser's employees and consultants under the Purchaser's employee stock option plan in the ordinary course), convertible security or other such right to issue or distribute to holders of any shares of its capital stock any evidence of indebtedness or assets of the Purchaser or any subsidiary of the Purchaser.
- (g) On or prior to the Effective Date, the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by the Purchaser and the consummation by the Purchaser of the

transactions contemplated hereby have been duly and validly approved by the board of directors of the Purchaser.

Financial

- (h) The Purchaser has made available to the Vendor prior to the execution of this Agreement a true and complete copy of each form, report, schedule, registration statement, definitive proxy statement and other document (together with all amendments thereof and supplements thereto) filed by the Purchaser or any of its Subsidiaries with Canadian securities regulatory authorities and the SEC, the TSX and NASDAO since January 1, 2003 (as such documents have since the time of their filing been amended or supplemented, the "WorldHeart Reports"), which are all the documents (other than preliminary material) that the Purchaser and its Subsidiaries were required to file with the SEC, Canadian securities regulatory authorities, the TSX and NASDAQ since such date. As of their respective dates, the WorldHeart Reports (i) complied as to form in all material respects with the requirements of the United States Securities Act of 1933, the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or Canadian securities laws, the TSX and NASDAQ, and (ii) did not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.
- The audited consolidated financial statements and unaudited interim consolidated (i) financial statements (including, in each case, the notes, if any, thereto) included in the WorldHeart Reports (the "WorldHeart Financial Statements") complied as to form in all material respects with the published rules and regulations of the Canadian securities regulatory authorities with respect thereto, were prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAP applied on a consistent basis during the periods involved (except as may be indicated therein or in the notes thereto and except with respect to unaudited statements as permitted by Canadian securities laws) and fairly present (subject, in the case of the unaudited interim financial statements, to the absence of certain footnotes and to normal, recurring year-end audit adjustments and to the absence of complete notes (which are not expected to be, individually or in the aggregate, materially adverse to the Purchaser and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole)) the consolidated financial position of the Purchaser and its consolidated Subsidiaries as at the respective dates thereof and the consolidated results of their operations and cash flows for the respective periods then ended. Each Subsidiary of the Purchaser is treated as a consolidated subsidiary of the Purchaser in the WorldHeart Financial Statements for all periods covered thereby.
- (j) Since September 30, 2004, there has been no change in the affairs, business, prospects, operations or condition of the Purchaser's business, financial or otherwise, whether arising as a result of any legislative or regulatory change,

revocation of any licence or right to do business, fire, explosion, accident, casualty, labour dispute, flood, drought, riot, storm, condemnation, act of God, public force or otherwise, except changes occurring in the usual and ordinary course of business that have not adversely affected the affairs, business, prospects, operations or condition of the Purchaser's business, financial or otherwise.

Contracts and Commitments

- (k) The Purchaser is not in material breach of any contract or commitment and there exists no condition, event or act that, with the giving of notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute such a default or breach, and all such contracts and commitments are in good standing and in full force and effect without amendment thereto and the Purchaser is entitled to all benefits thereunder.
- (l) There are no outstanding orders, notices or similar requirements relating to the Purchaser issued by any Governmental Authority and there are no matters under discussion with any Governmental Authority relating to orders, notices or similar requirements.

Intellectual Property

- (m) To the Purchaser's Knowledge, the conduct of the Purchaser's business does not involve any infringement, misuse or misappropriation of any Intellectual Property rights of third parties.
- (n) To the Purchaser's Knowledge, the Intellectual Property owned by the Purchaser is not invalid or unenforceable. To the Purchaser's Knowledge, no infringement, misuse or misappropriation of the Intellectual Property owned by the Purchaser has occurred.

General

- (o) There are no material actions, suits or proceedings (whether or not purportedly on behalf of the Purchaser):
 - pending or threatened against or adversely affecting, or which could adversely affect, the business of the Purchaser, or
 - (ii) before or by any Governmental Authority.
- (p) The Purchaser is conducting its business in material compliance with all Applicable Laws, is not in breach of any such Applicable Laws and is duly licensed, registered or qualified in the Province of Ontario and State of California and all municipalities thereof in which the Purchaser carries on the business to enable its business to be carried on an its assets to be owned, leased and operated, and all such licences, registrations and qualifications are valid and subsisting and

in good standing and none of the same contains any term, provision, condition or limitation which has or may have a material adverse effect on the operation of the business or which may be affected by the completion of the transactions contemplated hereby.

3.04 Survival of Purchaser's Representations, Warranties and Covenants

- (1) The representations and warranties of the Purchaser set forth in Section 3.03 will survive the completion of the sale and purchase of the Assets herein provided for and, notwithstanding such completion, will continue in full force and effect for the benefit of the Vendor for a period of one year from the Closing Date.
- (2) The covenants of the Purchaser set forth in this Agreement (other than the covenant set forth in Section 4.02(2) with respect to representations and warranties being true at the Time of Closing) will survive the completion of the sale and purchase of the Assets herein provided for and, notwithstanding such completion, will continue in full force and effect for the benefit of the Vendor in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 4 - COVENANTS

4.01 Covenants of the Vendor

- (1) In addition to any other provision for indemnification by the Vendor contained in this Agreement, the Vendor will indemnify and save harmless the Purchaser and the directors, officers, employees and agents of the Purchaser from and against:
 - (a) (i) all Claims directly or indirectly relating to the Purchased Business and accruing up to the close of business on the day before the Closing Date and
 - (ii) all other Claims directly or indirectly relating to the Vendor including Claims relating to income, sales, excise or other Taxes; and
 - (iii) all Claims relating to the Taxes imposed with respect to the Purchased Business arising prior to the Closing Date;
 - except, in either case, any Claim for which indemnification is provided under Section 4.01(1)(b) or (c) and those Claims with respect to which the Purchaser is liable under this Agreement including those accruing under the contracts and other commitments referred to in Section 2.05 and those for Taxes, duties and other charges referred to in Section 4.02(3);
 - (b) all Claims directly or indirectly arising in connection with the use of the Inventories by any person or the purchase of any of the Inventories by any third party except for any Claims directly or indirectly resulting from the negligence of the Purchaser; and

٤		
		- 29-
J	(c)	ll Claims incurred by the Purchaser directly or indirectly resulting from any reach of any covenant of the Vendor contained in this Agreement or, from any
		naccuracy or misrepresentation in any representation or warranty set forth in ection 3.01.
J	employees and	oints the Purchaser as the trustee for the Purchaser's directors, officers, agents of the covenant of the Vendor with respect to such persons and the its such appointment.
u v s d deptues	(2) out in Section	The Vendor will ensure that the representations and warranties of the Vendor set .01 over which the Vendor has reasonable control are true and correct at the Time hat the conditions of closing for the benefit of the Purchaser set out in Section
	5.01(1) over v the Time of C	ich the Vendor has reasonable control have been performed or complied with by
]	(3)	The Vendor immediately after the Closing Date will file
	(a)	articles of amendment changing its corporate name to one that does not include any trade mark or trade name included in the Assets, and
	(b)	cancellations with all applicable Governmental Authorities of the registrations of all business names included in the Assets.
]	(4) not be liable t respect of:	Notwithstanding any of the other provisions of this Agreement, the Vendor will the Purchaser or to the directors, officers, employees or agents of the Purchaser in
	(a)	any inaccuracy or misrepresentation in any representation or warranty set forth in Section 3.01 after one year after the Closing Date;
	(b)	any matter from and against which the Purchaser and the directors, officers, employees and agents of the Purchaser are indemnified pursuant to Sections
	(a)	4.01(1)(a) and (b) after one year after the Closing Date; or any inaccuracy or misrepresentation in any representation or warranty set forth in
	(c)	Section 3.01 or resulting from any matter from and against which the Purchaser and the directors, officers, employees and agents of the Purchaser are indemnified hereunder
		(i) unless and until the aggregate of all such Claims exceeds \$50,000, and then only to the extent that such aggregate exceeds such amount, or
		(ii) in excess of the fair market value of the Escrowed Shares determined at

the time of the final determination or settlement of the Claim,

other than, in either case, any Claim attributable to the lack of ownership of, or title to, the Assets and any Claim referred to in Section 4.01(1)(c) relating to any breach of any covenant of the Vendor contained in this Agreement.

- (5) Except to the event that the Purchaser otherwise previously consents in writing, until the Closing Date, the Vendor will use commercially reasonable efforts to preserve substantially intact in all material respects its present business organization, to maintain its existence in good standing, to keep available the services of its key officers and employees, to maintain insurance on its tangible assets and businesses in such amount and against such risks and losses as are currently in effect, to preserve its relationships with suppliers and others having significant business dealings with it and to comply in all material respects with all Applicable Laws.
- (6) The Vendor will not issue any additional shares of common stock or preferred stock prior to the Closing Date except upon the exercise of previously issued options to employees and consultants of the Vendor. The Vendor will inform the Purchaser in writing of any exercise of options and issuance of common shares.
- (7) The Vendor agrees to enter into a loan arrangement or similar arrangement with Maverick between the Effective Date and the Closing Date for purposes of funding the ongoing operations of the Vendor ("Maverick Loan").

4.02 Covenants of the Purchaser

(1) In addition to any other provision for indemnification by the Purchaser contained in this Agreement, the Purchaser will indemnify and save harmless the Vendor and the directors, officers, employees and agents of the Vendor from and against all Claims incurred by the Vendor directly or indirectly resulting from any breach of any covenant of the Purchaser contained in this Agreement or from any inaccuracy or misrepresentation in any representation or warranty set forth in Section 3.03.

The Purchaser appoints the Vendor as the trustee for the Vendor's directors, officers, employees and agents of the covenant of the Purchaser with respect to such persons and the Vendor accepts such appointment.

- (2) The Purchaser will ensure that the representations and warranties of the Purchaser set out in Section 3.03 over which the Purchaser has reasonable control are true and correct at the Time of Closing and that the conditions of closing for the benefit of the Vendor set out in Section 5.02(1) over which the Purchaser has reasonable control have been performed or complied with by the Time of Closing.
- (3) The Purchaser will be liable for and will pay, or will cause to be paid, all transfer, land transfer, value added, ad-valorem, excise, sales, use, consumption, goods or services, harmonized sales, retail sales, social services, or other similar Taxes or duties (collectively, "Transfer Taxes") payable under any Applicable Law on or with respect to the sale and purchase of the Assets under this Agreement. The Purchaser will prepare and file any affidavits or returns

required in connection with the foregoing at its own cost and expense. To the extent that any Transfer Taxes are required to be paid by or are imposed upon the Vendor, the Purchaser will reimburse, or will cause to be reimbursed, to the Vendor such Taxes within five Business Days of payment of such Taxes by the Vendor. All amounts payable by the Purchaser to the Vendor hereunder do not include Transfer Taxes.

- (4) Notwithstanding any of the other provisions of this Agreement, the Purchaser will not be liable to the Vendor or to the directors, officers, employees or agents of the Vendor in respect of
 - (a) any inaccuracy or misrepresentation in any representation or warranty set forth in Section 3.03 after one year after the Closing Date, or
 - (b) any inaccuracy or misrepresentation in any representation or warranty set forth in Section 3.03 or resulting from any matter from and against which the Vendor and the directors, officers, employees and agents of the Vendor are indemnified hereunder
 - (i) unless and until the aggregate of all such Claims exceeds \$50,000, and then only to the extent that such aggregate exceeds such amount, or
 - (ii) in excess of \$2,000,000 in the aggregate,

other than, in either case, any Claim referred to in Section 4.02(1) relating to any breach of any covenant of the Purchaser contained in this Agreement.

4.03 Employees

On or before the Closing Date, the Purchaser shall, in its sole discretion, offer "at will" employment to those employees of the Vendor appearing on Schedule 4.03 (the "Designated Employees") on terms and conditions which are generally consistent with their respective employment terms and length of service with the Vendor (other than any equity-based compensation) as set out on Schedule 3.01(tt) upon which such Designated Employees are employed by the Vendor immediately prior to the Closing Date unless otherwise agreed to in writing by such Designated Employee and the Purchaser. Such offer of employment shall be effective as of the Closing Date; provided, however, that, with respect to any Designated Employee who is absent from work on the Closing Date due to illness, injury, leave of absence, short-term disability or long-term disability, such offer of employment shall be effective when such employee is fit to return to work and reports for work with the Purchaser. The Designated Employees will receive full service credit for all years of employment with the Vendor for purposes of eligibility to participate in Purchaser's benefit plans. The Designated Employees will be entitled to carry over up to an equal number of days or weeks of vacation, if so accrued by such Designated Employee, as such Designated Employee receives in his or her offer of employment from the Purchaser ("Carry Forward"). The Carry Forward provision will only apply to those Designated Employees who provide notice in writing to the Vendor at least five

business days prior to the Closing Date; otherwise such accrued vacation amounts shall be paid out in full to the Designated Employee.

- Subject to the provisions of Section 4.03(1), the Vendor will continue to be (2)responsible for and will discharge all obligations and liabilities for wages, severance pay, termination pay, notice of termination of employment or pay in lieu of such notice, damages for wrongful dismissal or other employee benefits or claims (including vacation pay accrued up to the close of business on the date immediately preceding the Closing Date) in respect of all employees of the Vendor in the Purchased Business on the close of business on the Closing Date or otherwise relating to or as a result of employment by or termination of employment from the Vendor, or as a result of, or in connection with, the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby. The Purchaser assumes and will discharge all such obligations and liabilities accruing with respect to service as an employee of the Purchaser after the close of business on the day immediately preceding the Closing Date in respect of all former employees of the Vendor in the Purchased Business employed by the Purchaser; provided, however, that the parties acknowledge and agree that the transactions provided for in this Agreement may result in obligations on the part of the Vender and one or more of the Benefit Plans to comply with the health care continuation requirements of COBRA (as defined in Section 3.01(fff)) or state law, as applicable, and that the Purchaser and the Purchaser's benefit plans shall have no responsibility for compliance with such health care continuation requirements (i) for qualified beneficiaries who previously elected to receive continuation coverage under the Benefit Plans or who between the date of this Agreement and the Closing Date elect to receive continuation coverage, or (ii) with respect to those employees or former employees of the Vendor who may become eligible to receive such continuation coverage on or prior to the Closing or in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
- (3) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Vendor will be responsible for satisfaction of, and will indemnify and save harmless the Purchaser from and against, all Claims with respect to any employee employed or formerly employed in the Purchased Business, whether or not he or she is to be or is employed by the Purchaser pursuant to Section 4.03(1), but who is absent from work on the Closing Date due to illness, injury, leave of absence, short term disability or long term disability, until such employee is fit to return to work and reports for work with the Purchaser.
- (4) (i) The Purchaser shall not be obligated to assume, continue or maintain any of the Benefit Plans or Compensation Policies; (ii) no assets or liabilities of the Benefit Plans or Compensation Policies shall be transferred to, or assumed by, the Purchaser or the Purchaser's benefit plans; and (iii) the Vendor shall be solely responsible for funding and/or paying any benefits under any of the Benefit Plans and the Compensation Policies.
- (5) Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, shall: (i) confer upon any employee of the Vendor, or any representative of any such employee, any rights or remedies, including any right to employment or continued employment for any period or terms of employment, of any nature whatsoever, or (ii) be interpreted to prevent or restrict the Purchaser or its Subsidiaries from modifying or terminating the employment or terms of employment of

McCarthy Tétrault LLP DMS-OTTAWA #5633611 v. 8

any former employee of the Vendor employed by the Purchaser, including the amendment or termination of any employee benefit or compensation plan, program or arrangement, after the Closing Date.

(6) The Vendor shall make available to the Purchaser such personnel and similar information as the Purchaser may request with respect to any former employee of the Vendor employed by the Purchaser, including compensation and employment records.

4.04 <u>Cooperation on Tax Matters</u>

The Vendor and the Purchaser will furnish or cause to be furnished to each other, each at its own expense, as promptly as practicable, such information and assistance, and provide additional information and explanations of any material provided, relating to the Assets as is reasonably necessary for the filing of any Tax Returns, for the preparation of any audit, and for the prosecution or defence of any claim, suit or proceeding relating to any adjustment or proposed adjustment with respect to Taxes.

4.05 Tax Controversies

- The Purchaser shall promptly notify Vendor upon receipt by the Purchaser or any affiliate of the Purchaser of written notice of any inquiries, claims, assessments, audits or similar events with respect to Taxes relating to the Purchased Business relating to a taxable period ending on or prior to the Closing Date for which the Vendor may be liable under this Agreement (any such inquiry, claim, assessment, audit or similar event, a "Tax Matter"). The Vendor, or the Vendor's representative, at its sole expense, shall have the authority to control the defense, compromise or other resolution of any Tax Matter, including responding to inquiries, contesting, defending against and resolving any assessment for additional Taxes or notice of Tax deficiency or other adjustment of Taxes of, or relating to, a Tax Matter; provided, however, that neither the Vendor nor any of its affiliates shall enter into any settlement of or otherwise compromise any Tax Matter that adversely affects or may adversely affect the Tax liability with respect to the Purchased Business for any period (or portion thereof) ending after the Closing Date without the prior written consent of the Purchaser, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. The Vendor or the Vendor's Representative shall keep the Purchaser fully and timely informed with respect to the commencement, status and nature of any Tax Matter. The Vendor shall, in good faith, allow Purchaser, to make comments to the Vendor or the Vendor's Representative, regarding the conduct of or positions taken in any such proceeding.
- (2) Except as otherwise provided in Section 4.05(1) above, the Purchaser shall have the sole right to control any audit or examination by any taxing authority, initiate any claim for refund or amend any Tax Return, and contest, resolve and defend against any assessment for additional Taxes, notice of Tax deficiency or other adjustment of Taxes of, or relating to the Purchased Business for all taxable periods; provided, however, that the Purchaser shall not, and shall cause its affiliates not to, enter into any settlement of any contest or otherwise compromise any issue with respect to the portion of a taxable period that straddles the Closing Date ending on

the Closing Date without the prior written consent of the Vendor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

4.06 Amended Tax Returns

Neither the Vendor nor any of its affiliates will file or cause to be filed any amended Tax Returns or claims for refund with respect to the Purchased Business without the prior written consent the Purchaser, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

ARTICLE 5 - CONDITIONS

5.01 Conditions for the Benefit of the Purchaser

- (1) The sale by the Vendor and the purchase by the Purchaser of the Assets is subject to the following conditions, which are for the exclusive benefit of the Purchaser and which are to be performed or complied with at or prior to the Time of Closing:
 - (a) the representations and warranties of the Vendor set forth in Section 3.01 will be true and correct at the Time of Closing with the same force and effect as if made at and as of such time;
 - (b) the Vendor will have performed or complied with all of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Agreement to be performed or complied with by the Vendor at or prior to the Time of Closing;
 - (c) the Purchaser will be furnished with such certificates or other instruments (including instruments of conveyance with respect to the Assets) of the Vendor or of officers of the Vendor as the Purchaser or the Purchaser's counsel may reasonably think necessary in order to establish that the terms, covenants and conditions contained in this Agreement to have been performed or complied with by the Vendor at or prior to the Time of Closing have been performed or complied with and that the representations and warranties of the Vendor herein given are true and correct at the Time of Closing;
 - (d) there will have been obtained from all appropriate federal, provincial, municipal or other governmental or administrative bodies such other approvals or consents as are required to permit the change of ownership of the Assets contemplated hereby and to permit the Purchased Business to be carried on by the Purchaser as now conducted;
 - (e) no action or proceeding in Canada or the United States will be pending or threatened by any person, government, governmental authority, regulatory body or agency to enjoin, restrict or prohibit
 - (i) the sale and purchase of the Assets contemplated hereby or

- (ii) the right of the Purchaser to conduct the Purchased Business;
- (f) no material damage by fire or other hazard to the Assets will have occurred from the date hereof to the Time of Closing;
- (g) the Purchaser and the Vendor will each have obtained all necessary approvals of their respective shareholders with respect to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated herein;
- (h) the Purchaser will have obtained all necessary regulatory approvals including the approval of the TSX and NASDAQ with respect to the Agreement and the transactions contemplated herein and the filing of any notices under the *Investment Canada Act* (Canada), if required;
- (i) prior to or concurrent with the Time of Closing, Maverick will have completed the private placement contemplated in the Purchase Agreement;
- the Vendor will have entered into an Escrow Agreement in a form acceptable to the Vendor and Purchaser, each acting reasonably;
- (k) the Designated Employees will have signed employment contracts with the Purchaser prior to the Closing Date;
- (1) the Vendor will have executed a general conveyance agreement substantially in the form attached hereto as Schedule 5.01(1)(1);
- (m) the Vendor will have executed a letter in favour of the Purchaser with respect to the distribution of the Common Shares forming part of the Purchase Price to the Vendor's shareholders, substantially in the form attached hereto as Schedule 5.01(1)(m);
- (n) all consents identified in Schedule 5.01(1)(n) will have been obtained and shall be in full force and effect except those consents which individually or in the aggregate would not be expected to have a material adverse effect on the Purchaser's ability to conduct the Purchased Business immediately after the Closing Date;
- (o) the Vendor will have negotiated modified terms in respect of the Vendor's license agreements and/or subcontracting arrangements identified by the Purchaser, to the satisfaction of the Purchaser, acting reasonably;
- (p) all necessary steps and proceedings will have been taken to permit the Assets to be duly and regularly transferred to and registered in the name of the Purchaser;

- (q) the employment agreement entered into as of the date hereof between each of Pratap Khanwilkar and Gordon Jacobs and the Purchaser shall continue to be in full force and effect as of the Closing Date;
- (r) a consulting agreement between Dr. James Long and the Purchaser shall be executed prior to the Closing Date, substantially in the form attached as Schedule 5.01(r);
- (s) the Cash Amounts on Schedule 2.06(2) will have been agreed by the Vendor and the Purchaser; and
- (t) the form and legality of all matters incidental to the sale by the Vendor and the purchase by the Purchaser of the Assets will be subject to the approval of the Purchaser's counsel.
- (2) In case any term or covenant of the Vendor or condition to be performed or complied with for the benefit of the Purchaser at or prior to the Time of Closing has not been performed or complied with at or prior to the Time of Closing, the Purchaser, without limiting any other right that the Purchaser has, may at its sole option either:
 - (a) rescind this Agreement by notice to the Vendor, and in such event the Purchaser will be released from all obligations hereunder, or
 - (b) waive compliance with any such term, covenant or condition in whole or in part on such terms as may be agreed upon without prejudice to any of its rights of rescission in the event of non-performance of any other term, covenant or condition in whole or in part;

and, if the Purchaser rescinds this Agreement pursuant to Section 5.01(2)(a), the Vendor will also be released from all obligations hereunder unless the term, covenant or condition for which the Purchaser has rescinded this Agreement was one that the Vendor had covenanted, pursuant to Section 4.01(2), to ensure had been performed or complied with, in which event the Vendor will be liable to the Purchaser for any Claims incurred by the Purchaser directly or indirectly as a result of such breach.

5.02 Conditions for the Benefit of the Vendor

- (1) The sale by the Vendor and the purchase by the Purchaser of the Assets is subject to the following conditions, which are for the exclusive benefit of the Vendor and which are to be performed or complied with at or prior to the Time of Closing:
 - (a) the representations and warranties of the Purchaser set forth in Section 3.03 will be true and correct at the Time of Closing with the same force and effect as if made at and as of such time;

- (b) the Purchaser will have performed or complied with all of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Agreement to be performed or complied with by the Purchaser at or prior to the Time of Closing;
- (c) prior to the Time of Closing, the Convertible Debentureholders will have converted the convertible debentures which are held by them;
- (d) prior to the Time of Closing, the Warrantholders will have converted the warrants which are held by them;
- (e) the Purchaser will have entered into the Escrow Agreement in a form acceptable to the Vendor and the Purchaser, each acting reasonably;
- (f) the Purchaser and the Vendor each will have obtained all necessary approvals of their respective shareholders in respect of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated herein;
- (g) the Purchaser will have obtained all necessary regulatory approvals including the approval of the TSX and NASDAQ with respect to the Agreement and the transactions contemplated herein;
- (h) the Cash Amounts on Schedule 2.06(2) will have been agreed by the Vendor and the Purchaser; and
- the Vendor will be furnished with such certificates or other instruments of the Purchaser or of officers of the Purchaser as the Vendor or the Vendor's counsel may reasonably think necessary in order to establish that the terms, covenants and conditions contained in this Agreement to have been performed or complied with by the Purchaser at or prior to the Time of Closing have been performed or complied with and that the representations and warranties of the Purchaser herein given are true and correct at the Time of Closing.
- (2) In case any term or covenant of the Purchaser or condition to be performed or complied with for the benefit of the Vendor at or prior to the Time of Closing has not been performed or complied with at or prior to the Time of Closing, the Vendor, without limiting any other right that the Vendor has, may at its sole option either:
 - (a) rescind this Agreement by notice to the Purchaser, and in such event the Vendor will be released from all obligations hereunder, or
 - (b) waive compliance with any such term, covenant or condition in whole or in part on such terms as may be agreed upon without prejudice to any of its rights of rescission in the event of non-performance of any other term, covenant or condition in whole or in part

and, if the Vendor rescinds this Agreement pursuant to Section 5.02(2)(a), the Purchaser will also be released from all obligations hereunder unless the term, covenant or condition for which the Vendor has rescinded this Agreement was one that the Purchaser had covenanted, pursuant to Section 4.02(2), to ensure had been performed or complied with, in which event the Purchaser will be liable to the Vendor for any Claims incurred by the Vendor directly or indirectly as a result of such breach.

ARTICLE 6 - CLOSING ARRANGEMENTS

6.01 Closing

The sale and purchase of the Assets will be completed at the Time of Closing at the offices of McCarthy Tétrault LLP, 40 Elgin Street, Suite 1400, Ottawa, Ontario K1P 5K6 or such other location(s) as the parties may determine.

6.02 Examination of Records and Assets

- (1) The Vendor will forthwith make available to the Purchaser and its authorized representatives all data bases recorded or stored by means of any device, including in electronic form, title documents, abstracts of title, deeds, surveys, leases, certificates of trade marks and copyrights, contracts and commitments in its possession or under its control relating to any of the Assets or the Purchased Business. The Vendor will forthwith make available to the Purchaser and its authorized representatives for examination all books of account and accounting records relating to the Purchased Business. The Vendor will, if reasonably requested, provide copies, at the cost of the Purchaser, of the following records maintained in connection with the Purchased Business: financial statements, records of past sales, customer lists, supplier lists, payroll records, inventory data, inventory master records and accounts receivable data. The Vendor will give the Purchaser and its authorized representatives every reasonable opportunity to have access to and to inspect the Assets. The exercise of any rights of access or inspection by or on behalf of the Purchaser under this Section 6.02(1) will not affect or mitigate the covenants, representations and warranties of the Vendor in this Agreement which will continue in full force and effect.
- (2) At the Time of Closing the Vendor will deliver to the Purchaser all of the documents referred to in Section 6.02(1). The Purchaser will preserve the documents so delivered for a period of six years from the Closing Date, or for such other period as is required by any Applicable Law, and will permit the Vendor and its authorized representatives reasonable access thereto in connection with the affairs of the Vendor, but the Purchaser will not be responsible or liable to the Vendor for or as a result of any loss or destruction of or damage to any such documents.
- (3) Both prior to the Closing Date and, if the sale and purchase of the Assets hereunder fails to occur for whatever reason, thereafter the Purchaser will not disclose to anyone or use for its own or for any purpose other than the purpose contemplated by this Agreement any confidential information concerning the Vendor or the Purchased Business obtained by the Purchaser pursuant hereto, will hold all such information in the strictest confidence and, if the sale and purchase of the Assets hereunder fails to occur for whatever reason, will return all

documents, records and all other information or data relating to the Vendor or to the Purchased Business which the Purchaser obtained pursuant to this Agreement.

(4) From and after the Closing Date the Vendor will not disclose to anyone or use for any purpose any confidential information concerning the Purchased Business purchased by the Purchaser pursuant to this Agreement and will hold all such information in the strictest confidence.

6.03 Transfer of Possession

- by the Vendor in the usual and ordinary course of business for the account of the Purchaser and the Purchaser will be entitled to inspect all operations of the Purchased Business during the Interim Period. Any monies received by the Vendor from the Maverick Loan will be used solely for such purposes. All acts and proceedings taken by the Vendor in the management and operation of the Purchased Business from the date hereof involving a commitment in excess of \$30,000 and/or any payment in excess of \$30,000, including for greater certainty any arrangements or agreements with respect to the Maverick Loan, made by the Vendor during the Interim Period, will be subject to the prior approval of the Purchaser, which approval will not be unreasonably withheld. The Purchaser will be entitled to the income and profits in connection with the Purchased Business during the Interim Period and the Vendor will account to the Purchaser for all receipts, money, profits, benefits and advantages derived by or accruing to the Vendor from the Purchased Business during the Interim Period.
- (2) If the sale and purchase of the Assets provided for herein is not completed and closed in accordance with the terms and conditions hereof, then the Vendor will be under no obligation to account to the Purchaser for the receipts, money, profits, benefits and advantages derived by or accruing to the Vendor from the Purchased Business during the Interim Period as referred to in Section 6.03(1) and the Purchaser will be released from its obligation to assume, fulfil and perform the obligations and liabilities of the Vendor accruing after the close of business on the day before the Effective Date pursuant to Section 2.04.

6.04 Risk of Loss

Vendor will maintain all risk insurance in respect of loss or damage to or any other casualty in respect of the Assets which provides for loss settlement on a replacement cost basis if the Assets are repaired or replaced and on an actual cash value basis if the Assets are not repaired or replaced. The Vendor will also maintain all risk business interruption insurance with respect to any such loss, damage or other casualty. In the event of any loss, damage or claim in respect of any risk for which insurance is to be carried as aforesaid arising before the Time of Closing the Purchaser, as an additional condition of closing, will be entitled to be satisfied that the insurers have accepted the claim of the Vendor for payment in accordance with the terms of the policies. If any destruction or damage occurs to the Assets on or before the Time of Closing or if any or all of the Assets are appropriated, expropriated or seized by governmental or other lawful

authority on or before the Time of Closing, the Vendor will forthwith give notice thereof to the Purchaser and the Purchaser will have the option, exercisable by notice to the Vendor on or before the Time of Closing

- (a) to reduce the Purchase Price by an amount equal to the proceeds of insurance (and, if any such policy provided for a deductible amount, by an amount equal to such deductible amount) or compensation for destruction or damage or appropriation, expropriation or seizure and business interruption with respect thereto (in this Section 6.04 referred to as the "Proceeds"), and to complete the purchase or
- (b) to complete the purchase without reduction of the Purchase Price, in which event all Proceeds will be payable to the Purchaser and all right and claim of the Vendor to any such amounts not paid by the Closing Date will be assigned to the Purchaser.
- (2) If the Purchaser elects to reduce the Purchase Price pursuant to Section 6.04(1)(a), the Vendor and the Purchaser will at the Time of Closing determine the amount of the reduction to the extent that it is then determinable and will undertake to adjust such amount after the Closing Date, if necessary.

ARTICLE 7 - GENERAL

7.01 Indemnification

Except as provided in Section 4.05, the obligations of the Vendor and the Purchaser under this Agreement to indemnify and save harmless the other and its directors, officers, employees and agents are, in the case of any Claim by a third party, conditional upon the party that is otherwise entitled to be indemnified (the "Indemnitee") giving prompt notice to the other (the "Indemnitor") of such Claim and permitting the Indemnitor at its expense to participate in all negotiations relating thereto, to assume the defence of any action or proceeding relating thereto and to determine (with the Indemnitee, acting reasonably) whether any settlement should be made with respect thereto; provided that if, in the sole opinion of the Indemnitee, the interests of the Indemnitee are different from those of the Indemnitor in connection with such Claim, the Indemnitee will have the right, at the Indemnitor's expense, to defend its own interests provided that any settlement of such Claim is on terms and conditions approved by the Indemnitor, acting reasonably. If the Indemnitor does not defend any Claim, the Indemnitee will have the right to do so on its own behalf and on behalf of the Indemnitor at the expense of the Indemnitor.

7.02 Further Assurances

Each of the Vendor and the Purchaser will from time to time execute and deliver all such further documents and instruments and do all acts and things as the other party may, either before or after the Closing Date, reasonably require to effectively carry out or better evidence or perfect the full intent and meaning of this Agreement.

McCarthy Tétrault LLP DMS-OTTAWA #5633611 v. 8

7.03 Time of the Essence

Time is of the essence of this Agreement.

7.04 Fees and Commissions

Each of the Vendor and the Purchaser will pay its respective legal and accounting costs and expenses incurred in connection with the preparation, execution and delivery of this Agreement and all documents and instruments executed pursuant to this Agreement and any other costs and expenses whatsoever and howsoever incurred and will indemnify and save harmless the other from and against any Claim for any broker's, finder's or placement fee or commission alleged to have been incurred as a result of any action by it in connection with the transactions under this Agreement.

7.05 Public Announcements

Except as required by law, no public announcement or press release concerning the sale and purchase of the Assets may be made by the Vendor or the Purchaser without the prior consent and joint approval of the Vendor and the Purchaser.

7.06 Benefit of the Agreement

This Agreement will enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the respective successors and permitted assigns of the parties hereto.

7.07 <u>Entire Agreement</u>

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and cancels and supersedes any prior understandings and agreements between the parties hereto with respect thereto. There are no representations, warranties, terms, conditions, undertakings or collateral agreements, express, implied or statutory, between the parties other than as expressly set forth in this Agreement.

7.08 Amendments and Waivers

No amendment to this Agreement will be valid or binding unless set forth in writing and duly executed by both of the parties hereto. No waiver of any breach of any provision of this Agreement will be effective or binding unless made in writing and signed by the party purporting to give the same and, unless otherwise provided, will be limited to the specific breach waived.

7.09 Assignment

This Agreement may not be assigned by the Vendor without the written consent of the Purchaser but may be assigned by the Purchaser without the consent of the Vendor to an Affiliate of the Purchaser, as determined by the provisions of the Business Corporations Act

(Ontario), provided that such Affiliate enters into a written agreement with the Vendor to be bound by the provisions of this Agreement in all respects and to the same extent as the Purchaser is bound and provided that the Purchaser will continue to be bound by all the obligations hereunder as if such assignment had not occurred and perform such obligations to the extent that such Affiliate fails to do so.

7.10 Notices

Any demand, notice or other communication to be given in connection with this Agreement must be given in writing and will be given by personal delivery, by registered mail or by electronic means of communication addressed to the recipient as follows:

To the Vendor:

MedQuest Products, Inc. 4750 Wiley Post Way, Suite 120 Salt Lake City, Utah, 84116

Fax No.:

801-355-7622

Attention:

President

with a copy to:

Holland & Hart LLP 60 East South Temple, Suite 2000 Salt Lake City, Utah 84111

Fax No.: 801-364-9124

Attention:

Gregory E. Lindley

To the Purchaser:

World Heart Corporation 7799 Pardee Lane Oakland, California, 94621

Fax No.:

510-563-4800

Attention:

President

with a copy to:

McCarthy Tétrault LLP 40 Elgin Street, Suite 1400 Ottawa, Ontario, K1P 5K6

Fax No: 613-563-9386

Attention: Virginia K. Schweitzer

or to such other street address, individual or electronic communication number or address as may be designated by notice given by either party to the other. Any demand, notice or other communication given by personal delivery will be conclusively deemed to have been given on the day of actual delivery thereof and, if given by registered mail, on the third Business Day following the deposit thereof in the mail and, if given by electronic communication, on the day of transmittal thereof if given during the normal business hours of the recipient and on the Business Day during which such normal business hours next occur if not given during such hours on any day. If the party giving any demand, notice or other communication knows or ought reasonably to know of any difficulties with the postal system that might affect the delivery of mail, any such demand, notice or other communication may not be mailed but must be given by personal delivery or by electronic communication.

7.11 <u>Remedies Cumulative</u>

The right and remedies of the parties under this Agreement are cumulative and are in addition to, and not in substitution for, any other rights and remedies available at law or in equity or otherwise. No single or partial exercise by a party of any right or remedy precludes or otherwise affects the exercise of any other right or remedy to which that party may be entitled.

7.12 No Third Party Beneficiaries

Except as provided in Sections 4.01(1), 4.02(1), 7.01 and 7.06, this Agreement is solely for the benefit of

- (a) the Vendor and its successors and permitted assigns, with respect to the obligations of the Purchaser under this Agreement, and
- (b) the Purchaser, and its successors and permitted assigns, with respect to the obligations of the Vendor under this Agreement

and this Agreement will not be deemed to confer upon or give to any other person any remedy, claim, liability, reimbursement, cause of action or other right.

7.13 Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction; WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL

This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the internal laws of the State of New York without regard to the choice of law principles thereof. The parties irrevocably submit to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the State of New York located in New York County and the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York for the purpose of any suit, action, proceeding or judgement relating to or arising out of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby. Service of process in connection with any such suit, action or proceeding may be served on the parties anywhere in the world by the same methods as are specified for the giving of notices under this Agreement. The parties irrevocably consent to the jurisdiction of any such court in any such suit, action or proceeding and to the laying of venue in such court. The parties irrevocably waive any objection to the laying of venue of any such suit, action or proceeding brought in such courts and irrevocably waives any claim that any such suit, action or proceeding brought in any such court has been brought in an inconvenient forum. THE PARTIES WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO REQUEST A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LITIGATION WITH RESPECT TO THIS AGREEMENT AND REPRESENTS THAT COUNSEL HAS BEEN CONSULTED SPECIFICALLY AS TO THIS WAIVER.

7.14 Counterparts

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which will be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together will be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument.

7.15 Facsimiles

Delivery of an executed signature page to this Agreement by any party by electronic transmission will be as effective as delivery of a manually executed copy of this Agreement by such party.

McCarthy Tétrault LLP DMS-OTTAWA #5633611 v. 8

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Agreement.

WORLD HEART CORPORATION

Per:

al S. Jassawalla

President and Chief Executive

Officer

MEDQUEST PRODUCTS, INC.

Per:

Pratap Khanwilkar

President and Chief Executive

Officer

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Agreement.

WORLD HEART CORPORATION

Per:

Jal S. Jassawalla

President and Chief Executive

Officer

MEDQUEST PRODUCTS, INC.

Per:

President and Chief Executive Officer

McCarthy Tétrault LLP DMS-OTTAWA #5633611 v. 8

RECORDED: 04/01/2009